CITY OF TUCUMCARI
MINUTES
January 14, 2010

The Tucumcari City Commission met for their Regu\deeting on Thursday, January
14, 2010, at 6:00 p.m. in the City Commission Charab Members present constituting
a quorum were Antonio Apodaca, Jim Lafferty, Rolernmpkin, Jimmy Sandoval, and
Jim Witcher.

City staff members present were Bobbye Rose, Cianader; Christine Dougherty, City
Clerk; Marty Garcia, Finance Manager; Vicki Stramkputy Finance Director: Clara
Rey, Personnel Director; and Janet Garcia, Labograti@anager.

Mr. Eddy Mardis, of the Fathers Forge Church, géneeinvocation and Commissioner
Lumpkin led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call
Mayor Apodaca asked for Roll Call:

Sandoval Lafferty Apodaca Lumpkin Witcher
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Consideration of Changes or Deletions to Agenda

Mayor Apodaca asked if there were any changes letidies to the agenda. Ms. Rose
stated that Mr. Muirhead and Mr. Harrigan have arotved as of yet and therefore, the
reading of Ordinance 1075 may have to be postpangbthey arrive.

Items from Commissioners

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher thanked all those in attemgédior coming and stated that it was
nice to see so many smiling faces.

Commissioner Lumpkin thanked those in attendance&dming and sent his love to the
survivors in Haiti.

Commissioner Sandoval said Happy New Year to all.

Mayor Apodaca stated that he will be in attendaatehe Eastern Area Workforce

Development Board Meeting next week. The Mayoo alsted that the budget is tight

and he recalled that about two years ago, the Cesiom gave themselves a pay raise.
He stated that he was interested in pursuing tea iof giving up the increase and
reverting to the previous amount of pay. Mayor éApoa asked if the other

Commissioners would be willing to have the itemtlo® next agenda for discussion.



Mayor Pro Tem Witcher stated that only two of then@nissioners received raises and
those were only for two years. Mayor Apodaca st#bat perhaps Commissioners could
give up their pay increases on a volunteer basis.

Approval of Minutes

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher made a motion to approventirautes of the December 17,
2009 Regular Meeting. Commissioner Lumpkin secdrtle motion. Roll Call:

Lafferty Apodaca Lumpkin Witcher Sandoval
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Approval of Vouchers

Commissioner Lumpkin made a motion to approve thechiers for payment. Mayor Pro
Tem Witcher seconded the motion. Roll Call:

Apodaca Lumpkin Witcher Sandoval Lafferty
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Items from Citizens

Mr. Tom Anderson approached the Commission as @mpatf the Senior Center. Sue
Gholson approached with him as a member of theoB&itizens Advisory Board. The
pair requested support for their effort to seekngrainds for a billiards table. Mr.
Anderson thanked Clara Rey and Jessica Elebarioh@r fine efforts in running the
Center. Mr. Anderson introduced fellow pool plasyeFom Fry, Joe Redde, and Lorenzo
Calbert. Each of these men plays pool regulartyhatSenior Center and believes a new
table is in order for the center. Mr. Anderson lakged that the pool players from the
Tucumcari Senior Center have been state champigpsal at the Senior Olympics.

Mr. Anderson stated that about two dozen peoplelagly use the pool table at the
center. Mr. Anderson went on to say that he haokap to CJ Wiegel about the
possibility of applying for McMullen funds to purabe a pool table. Mr. Wiegel
informed Mr. Anderson that applications for McMulléunds must be made by a legal
entity. Mr. Anderson asked for the City to supptir¢ application for $2700. Mr.
Anderson stated that the application would in ny yempardize the City or any future
requests for funding.

Ms. Gholson stated that there are 10 men that ptey} every day and a better table
would increase the people utilizing the center mrpliested backing for the application.

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher stated that the request cbelgut on the next agenda. He also
encouraged the pool players to seek donations liwoat service clubs.

Clara Rey approached the podium and explainedstiehas some hesitancy surrounding
the request for funding from the McMullen fund. .MRey stated that in the past, staff
had been cautioned to request only what the Cdilyréeeds. Ms. Rey also explained
that another Senior Center has been contactedhaydare considering donation their



pool table to the Tucumcari Center. Ms. Rey want@ say that Jessica Elebario had
located a new table that was less expensive. My. \Ras also concerned that the
program is only funded for meals and transportatod all the energy of the staff is
currently being used to bring the Center into coamule.

Ms. Rey also stated that the reason the pool @ayere being asked to leave at 3 pm
each day is because the Center closes at 3 pnihamdiés are being enforced.

Ms. Rose stated that the Village of San Jon witisider donating their pool table at their
next Commission meeting. Additionally, Ms. Rosespaally owns a snooker table she
is willing to donate.

Commissioner Lafferty stated that he would likekarify that the Commission cautioned
staff on making requests to the McMullen Foundation items that the city already
collects taxes to pay for.

Ms. Rey explained that there is no Senior Citizansey for this purpose.

Mr. Lafferty speculated that the City RecreationpBxtment might be able to fund the
purchase. Mr. Lafferty suggested that the iterpitteon the agenda for consideration.

Ms. Gholson suggested that the seniors could farsk rand some of the cost could be
covered by the City. Mr. Anderson stated that semiors were interested in the
opportunity for the grant and wanted to ask the it nothing.

Mr. Calbert stated that the McMullen Foundationidgated that the chances of the request
getting funded were good. Mr. Calbert said thattetacted the Brunswick Corporation
and was told that if the purchase is made by a legity, they are willing to drop the
price from $3500 to $2700.

Ordinances and Resolutions

Chris Muirhead of the Modrall Firm and Erik Harrigaf RBC presented Ordinance
1075. Mr. Muirhead explained that the USDA regsiiteat the City pledge funds for
repayment of the loan for the Wastewater Plantgetoj Mr. Harrigan stated that the City
pledged revenues for the $8 million sewer projédt. Harrigan went on to explain that
the rate structure did not provide enough reveougdse the loan. The Gross Receipts
Tax is pledged to pay the debt service on bondbkerdl are options the City has to
consider in order to repay the loan. Decreasingraiphg costs, increase sewer rates, a
combination of both of the aforementioned, or reckse the Y% Ute Lake Water tax
funds to the project.

Mr. Witcher asked Mr. Garcia how much a 5% increasmuld raise the average
customers’ rate. Mr. Garcia explained that whaeguired to meet the needs is a 15%
sewer rate increase. Mr. Witcher asked how muehiribrease would need to be if it
were system wide. Mr. Garcia stated that a 5%esm® in system revenue would be
smaller for citizens. Mr. Garcia stated he wotlke to see the system revenue pay the
debt. Mr. Garcia also stated that increasing téxas option although not as desirable.



Mr. Muirhead stated that the debt is pre-payablangtime. Mr. Harrigan added that if
the Gross Receipts Tax was re-dedicated to the Udirty, it would meet the 130% rate

covenant requirement. Mr. Muirhead explained th& Ordinance does not encumber
the Ute Lake tax and that there are two separét6%d/Gross Receipt Taxes being
discussed.

Mr. Garcia stated that if the Commission decidemtoease revenues to repay this debt,
an average customers bill will increase somewheteden $2.50 and $2.70 per month.

Ms. Rose asked for the annual debt payment amoMint.Harrigan responded that the
annual debt payment is $91,000 at a very attractite of 2 ¥9%. Mr. Harrigan went on
to explain that the City is not obligated for thebtuntil the loan is closed. Mr. Harrigan
added that even passing the ordinance does ngatdblihe City.

Mr. Witcher asked when a rate increase would hawgotinto effect in order to make the
first loan payment. Mr. Harrigan responded thatiticrease would have to go into effect
in July of 2010. Mr. Harrigan explained that th& & is very accommodating to
communities. He added that if the Commission apguloa rate increase in order to
satisfy the debt, the loan will close even if thterincrease has not gone into effect yet.

Commissioner Lafferty made a motion to approve fitst reading of Bond Ordinance
1075 contingent upon staff bringing funding optios the Commission before the
second reading and Commissioner Lumpkin secondethttion. Roll Call:

Lumpkin Witcher Sandoval Lafferty Apodaca
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Christine Dougherty, City Clerk then presented Résm 2010-01, the Open
Meetings Resolution for calendar year 2010. Msudderty explained that this is a
standard resolution required by statute and defiviesn Commission meetings will
be held and how the public will be notified of sunketings.

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher made a motion to approve Réism 2010-01 and
Commissioner Lumpkin seconded the motion. Roll:Cal

Witcher Sandoval Lafferty Apodaca Lumpkin
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Veronica Sandy, Risk Manager, then presented R&sol2010-02. Ms. Sandy

explained that this resolution presents a revisadion of the City’'s Safety Manual.

Ms. Sandy explained that a committee of variousdd@pent Heads worked together
to revise this manual.

Commissioner Lafferty stated that the manual stdtasa monthly safety meeting is
to be held and he wondered if this was happeniMg. Sandy responded that these
meetings are held by each department and Ms. Riasedsthat in the monthly
Department Head meeting, safety issues are alssredy



Mr. Lafferty stated that the manual also mentiorestpp vehicle inspections and he
wondered how these are conducted. Ms. Sandy rdedaiat a form exists which
spells out the steps for the inspections.

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher asked Ms. Rose if she recontteé that this resolution be
passed. Ms. Rose responded in the positive. Mse RIso stated that she wanted to
commend Ms. Sandy, Ms. Rey and the other Departideatls that worked on this
project.

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher made a motion to approve Réism 2010-02, the City of
Tucumcari Safety Manual. Commissioner Lumpkin seleal the motion. Roll Call:

Sandoval Lafferty Apodaca Lumpkin Witcher
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Ms. Rose then presented Resolution 2010-03, a &esolregarding credit card use.
Ms. Rose explained that this Resolution allowsaterstaff to use the City credit card
for specific purposes. Mayor Pro Tem Witcher madeotion to approve Resolution
2010-03 and Commissioner Lumpkin seconded the motRoll Call:

Lafferty Apodaca Lumpkin Witcher Sandoval
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

City Manager’s Report

Ms. Rose reported that the funding for the landfils been released by the state.
However, she explained that this may change with Idyislative session. Ms. Rose
explained that the project will go out to bid sodds. Rose also stated that there are not
enough funds to complete the project as plannedhe Jcale plaza and the pit for
construction and debris may not be funded apprtgyia Ms. Rose said she will look
into using City crews on parts of the project iderto cut costs. Ms. Rose stated that
she has discussed this with the Sanitation Sueadeint and he felt winter would be the
best time to utilize his crews for this work.

Ms. Rose then informed the Commission that Ms. Rél begin publishing a City
newsletter called “In the City” that will be primteon the backs of water bills. Ms. Rey
informed the Commission that they should let havvkiif they have any ideas for items
to go in the newsletter. Ms. Rey also informed @ommission that she will provide
copies of the newsletter to them before bills aeled so that they know what is in the
letter.

Ms. Rose informed the Commission that the boilghatlibrary is not operating and it is
anticipated that replacement will cost around $20,0 Ms. Rose stated that USDA
funds, energy efficiency grants and emergency fumidisall be explored as options for
funding this project.

Ms. Rose reported that she met with the State EeginOffice and they advised that they
will inspect the Ute Lake Ranch Golf Meter to makeee it meets their specifications.



Ms. Rose reported that all staff evaluations haaenlcompleted.

Ms. Rose said that she serves on the Eastern Rlainacil of Governments and the
alternate position is vacant. She asked the Cononige consider who they would like
to appoint as an alternate to attend the meetings.

Ms. Rose then gave the Commission an update regahdir calendar events. She also
explained that either at a Special Meeting or thet iRegular Meeting there will be a
mid-year budget review.

It was the consensus of the Commission that a wession should be held for the mid-
year budget review. It was decided to hold thekvgession on Tuesday, January 19 at
6:00 pm.

Ms. Rose informed the Commission that the Tri-$taris upset about the lights on the
west side of their building coming down. Ms. Rasated that she will meet with Xcel
Energy next week and a direction will be determin€bmmissioner Lumpkin asked if
there will be an energy savings and Ms. Rose reggmbm the positive.

Commissioner Lafferty stated that he has seen peggl off the interstate on the west
Route 66 Boulevard exit, see that the truck stopask and they turn around. Mr.
Witcher stated that guard lights would provide tighd some energy savings. Ms. Rose
stated that Xcel estimates $70,000 to repair lightshe west end of town. Mr. Lafferty
asked if there will be an option to leave someheflights on. Ms. Rose stated that there
will be more information to discuss at the next timgg

Mayor Apodaca asked for a report on the statusuddalupe County’s use of the City
landfill. Ms. Rose stated that it is still unclebthe Vaughn landfill will be closing. Ms.
Rose stated that Santa Rosa has indicated thatmbeld like to resume bringing their
trash to the Tucumcari landfill.

New Business

Mr. Powers presented the Capital Outlay RequesmFor the 49 Legislature. Mr.
Powers explained that the state requested thaCityeput together a proposal. Mr.
Powers explained that the City landfill was thej@cbof choice. Mr. Powers speculated
that there would be no money and the landfill prbje already underway.

The Commissioners decided that this did not nedxtteoted on at this time.

Mayor Apodaca told Mr. Powers that he was glad be back at work.

Bids and Contracts

Mr. Mark Lake presented the new grant agreementhi®iMain Street project. Mr. Lake
explained that this agreement is for the main stmegster plan. He explained that as a
result of the special legislative session, the iede of the allocation would be funded
through severance tax bonds. Mr. Lake said thatgrant contracts had to be executed
because of this. Mr. Lake said that there is $lIB)&ft in our project.



Commissioner Lafferty made a motion to approve $tete of New Mexico Economic
Development Grant Agreement for the Main Streetdeto Mayor Pro Tem Witcher
seconded the motion. Roll Call:

Lumpkin Witcher Sandoval Lafferty Apodaca
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Mr. Ed Dubois of HDR Engineering presented the liadgphase three of the wastewater
treatment plant project. Mr. Dubois stated thate were four bids opened on January
12, 2010. The low bid was submitted by Samcon, &md was for $6,191,503.55. Mr.
Dubois went on to say that the laboratory at tlaafplvill be completed with a grant from
the USDA for $550,000.

Commissioner Sandoval asked if this is the lassphd the wastewater treatment plant.
Mr. Dubois responded in the positive.

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher made a motion to Approve BhHsree Wastewater Treatment
Plant Bid with Samcon, Inc. contingent upon USDAdamMMED approval.
Commissioner Lumpkin seconded the motion. Roll:Cal

Witcher Sandoval Lafferty Apodaca Lumpkin
Yes No Yes Yes Yes

Ms. Dougherty presented the Operating Agreemenivdert the Tucumcari Historic
Research Institute and the City. Ms. Doughertyla@rpd that this agreement has been in
negotiations for some time now and consensus haByfibeen reached. Mayor Pro Tem
Witcher made a motion to approve the Tucumcari diist Museum Operating
Agreement with the Tucumcari Historic Researchitatgt and Commissioner Lumpkin
seconded the motion. Roll Call:

Sandoval Lafferty Apodaca Lumpkin Witcher
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Ms. Rose then explained that Mr. David Foote hgsested in writing that his land lease
with the City for land near the airport be termetht The lease contains provisions for
termination with proper notice. Mr. Lumpkin expiad that Mr. Foote has had trouble
utilizing the land to it's fullest potential due tbe lack of water from the Arch Hurley

Conservancy District. Commissioner Lumpkin madeadion to terminate the lease with

Mr. Foote and Mayor Pro Tem Witcher seconded theano Roll Call:

Lafferty Apodaca Lumpkin Witcher Sandoval
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Ms. Janet Garcia presented the quote for removaldithemicals from Safety Kleen
Company. Ms. Garcia stated that the chemicalsharéonger used and quite old and
should not be moved to the new lab building. Mardi& discovered that one chemical in
the lab is radioactive and the price to remove thamical is not included in the quote.
Ms. Garcia spoke to Safety Kleen and they spealldtat removal of the radioactive



chemical would increase the price by $8000. Cormimiger Lafferty asked if Safety
Kleen is the only company that can remove the cbaisi Ms. Garcia responded in the
negative.

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher made a motion to table tteewuksion until further information
is gathered. Commissioner Lumpkin seconded théomotRoll Call:

Apodaca Lumpkin Witcher Sandoval Lafferty
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Ms. Dougherty explained that Mr. Cherry was undblattend the meeting and asked her
to present the E-911 Project 07-E-14 Grant Amendmimber Three for him. Ms.
Dougherty stated that there was an error in theigus version of the grant and this
amendment corrects the error. Mayor Pro Tem Witaede a motion to approve the E-
911 Project 07-E-14 Grant Amendment Number Threg¢ @ommissioner Lumpkin
seconded the motion. Roll Call:

Lumpkin Witcher Sandoval Lafferty Apodaca
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Items From Commissioners

Commissioners Lafferty and Sandoval had no comments
Mayor Pro Tem Witcher and Commissioner thankedehosttendance for coming.

Executive Session

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher made a motion to Convene xeddtive Session pursuant to
NMSA Open meetings Section 10-15-1 H(2) 1995, eeldb limited personnel matters;
specifically the City Managers Quarterly Reviewon@nissioner Lumpkin seconded the
motion. Roll Call:

Witcher Sandoval Lafferty Apodaca Lumpkin
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Time noted 7:16 pm.

Commissioner Lumpkin made a motion to reconvenRagular Session after Executive
Session pursuant to NMSA Open meetings Section5t0-H(2) 1995, related to limited

personnel matters where the only item discussed thasCity Managers Quarterly

Review. Mayor Pro Tem Witcher seconded the motigoll Call:

Sandoval Lafferty Apodaca Lumpkin Witcher
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Time noted 7:47 pm.

Adjournment



Mayor Pro Tem Witcher made a motion to adjournrtieeting. Commissioner Lumpkin
seconded the motion. Roll Call:

Lafferty Apodaca Lumpkin Witcher Sandoval
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

The meeting was adjourned at 7:47 p.m.

Antonio Apodaca, Mayor

ATTEST:

Christine Dougherty, City Clerk



